NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET – 15 NOVEMBER 2016

Title of report	MINUTES OF THE COALVILLE SPECIAL EXPENSES WORKING PARTY
Key Decision	a) Financial No b) Community No
Contacts	Councillor Alison Smith MBE 01530 835668 alison.smith@nwleicestershire.gov.uk Director of Services 01530 454555 steve.bambrick@nwleicestershire.gov.uk Head of Community Services 01530 454832
	john.richardson@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
Purpose of report	To consider the recommendations made by the Coalville Special Expenses Working Party.
Reason for Decision	To progress Coalville Special Expenses projects and programmes.
Council Priorities	Value for Money
Implications:	
Financial/Staff	As set out within the budget.
Link to relevant CAT	None.
Risk Management	N/A
Equalities Impact Screening	None discernible.
Human Rights	None.
Transformational Government	None.
Comments of Head of Paid Service	The report is satisfactory.
Comments of Deputy Section 151 Officer	The report is satisfactory.

Comments of Deputy Monitoring Officer	The report is satisfactory.
Consultees	Members of the Coalville Special Expenses Working Party
Background papers	Agenda and associated documents of the meeting held on 13 October 2016
Recommendations	TO NOTE THE RECOMMENDATIONS MADE BY THE COALVILLE SPECIAL EXPENSES WORKING PARTY AS DETAILED WITHIN THE MINUTES AND APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS AS SUMMARISED AT 3.0

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Coalville Special Expenses Working Party meets quarterly to consider financial issues which affect the special expenses area. As the group reports directly to Cabinet, all recommendations made will be sent to the first available Cabinet meeting after the group have met for final approval.

2.0 TERMS OF REFERENCE

- 2.1 To consider budget and financial issues which either solely or predominantly affect the special expenses area alone and to make recommendations back to Cabinet.
- 2.2 To consider possible project options regarding the allocation of surplus reserves which have been examined by the relevant budget officers and to make recommendations to Cabinet.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM MEETING ON 13 OCTOBER 2016

3.1 CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE

- 3.1.1 The following recommendations were made by the Working Party
 - a) Consideration was given to reallocating some of the Urban Forest Park Section 106 monies to progress a centre piece for the Memorial Trees.

3.2 2016/17 EVENTS UPDATE

- 3.2.1 The following recommendations were made by the Working Party
 - a) A sum of £3,000 be allocated from reserves to cover the replacement timers for the Christmas lights.
 - b) To approve the proposed dates for 2017 Events.

MINUTES of a meeting of the COALVILLE SPECIAL EXPENSES WORKING PARTY held in the Board Room, Council Offices, Coalville on THURSDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2016

Present: Councillor J Geary (Chairman)

Councillors N Clarke, J Cotterill, D Everitt, J Legrys, P Purver and M Specht

Officers: Mr J Knight, Mr J Richardson, Mrs C Hammond and Mrs W May

10. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were apologies for absence from Councillor R Adams.

The Chairman welcomed the Interim Cultural Services Team Manager to her first meeting.

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor J Geary declared a non pecuniary interest in item 4 – Capital Projects update as a regular supporter of Coalville Town FC and a founder member of Mantle Lane Arts.

Councillor J Legrys declared a non pecuniary interest in any reference to Hermitage FM due to his involvement with the organisation.

12. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2016.

Councillor J Geary asked whether the Picnic/Proms in the Park had come in under budget.

The Head of Community Services advised Members that indications were that the event would come in £2,500 over the budget however there were still some invoices and income outstanding so it was not a final figure and that officers were working on mitigations to reduce the overspend.

Councillor J Legrys thanked all parties that were involved with the work on the Phoenix Green Bridge Mural.

By affirmation of the meeting it was

RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2016 be approved and signed by the chairman as a correct record.

13. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE

The Leisure Services Team Manager presented the report to Members and provided an update on each of the ongoing projects.

Owen Street Recreation Ground - Changing Room Development

Building work had now been completed and that the club hoped to have an official opening with a marquee game against a professional club, but due to unavailability of local clubs it had been

agreed to move the official opening to the end of the season. Officers had arranged for a visit for Members of the working party and the date was Thursday, 27 October at 4.00pm.

Thringstone Miners Social Centre

Planning approval had been given for the fence but the footpath diversion was still awaited before the funding application could be submitted to complete the project.

In response questions from Councillor D Everitt, officers advised Members that the height of the fence had been approved at 2ms, that it was required that there was a gap between the fence and the footpath and that the fence would be a green chain link fence which would ensure that the footpath would not be in complete darkness

Cropston Drive Recreation Ground

Work had started with the entrance drive levelled and work on improving the surrounding hedges.

Urban Forest Park, Coalville

Officers were looking into costs to improve the boundary including the car park fence using the remaining S106 funding. Officers had approached the National Forest in relation to the management of the site, however the National Forest were focusing on the creation of new woodland and they had also advised that they would not put public toilets in such areas due to high costs and revenue sustainability, the risk of vandalism and anti social behaviour.

Consultation would begin on the potential renaming with officers working with schools in the area of the park.

In response to a question from Councillor J Geary, officers advised Members that it was intended to take the names to the schools for consideration and add any new ones that the pupils may come up with and it may be possible to bring the proposed names back to the next meeting.

Councillor J Geary expressed that it would be a shame if the new signage would not be in place until next summer at the earliest.

Thringstone Bowls Club Toilet Block

The project was now complete.

Bench in Thringstone

The project was now complete.

Councillor D Everitt stated that he had received positive feedback in relation to the new bench and residents had raised the possibility of having another bench on the other side of the village.

Memorial Trees

Members had visited the site to see the proposal and would now be progressed. Options would be brought to a future meeting for the centre piece. The £2,000 would cover the cost of the trees and therefore Members may wish to consider, subject to the Section 106, reallocating some of the money to progress the centre piece.

Phoenix Green Bridge Mural

The project has been completed.

Green Gym at Melrose Road

Three quotes had been obtained and officers had got that down to one quote that had come in at £15,000 for 5 pieces of equipment. The Open Space and Parks Team Leader had done an excellent job negotiating and had got the quote down to £12,000. The order would be placed within the next couple of days and installed as soon as possible.

The Head of Community Services advised Members that originally officers were considering 4 pieces of equipment and congratulated officers for negotiating 5 pieces within the budget

Scotlands Play Hub Development

Progress was still on hold as the Legal department was still negotiating the move of the MUGA from Lillehammer Drive with the developers.

Councillor J Legrys thanked all officers from the Council who had been working to get the games area moved to resolve the issues, but felt that pressure needed to be applied for the public to realise that the delay in the move was holding up children being able to play and therefore would be wanting to ask a question to Council. He added that it would not be detrimental to the work done by the Council.

Mobile Activated Signage

The proposed locations had been passed on to LCC and awaiting their approval. Once approval given the Memorandum of Understanding can be signed, the lamp posts inspected and the units purchased.

Improved Parks Signage

LCC had completed their signage changes and once the consultation and a new name agreed for the Urban Forest Park new signage for there and Coalville Park would be arranged.

Melrose Road Recreation Ground, Thringstone

Officers had met with representative of Friends of Thringstone and it was proposed to develop the area into a park. It would still be usable as a football pitch but the exterior and entrances improved. It was not proposed to include any play equipment. Proposals and costings would be brought to the December meeting for consideration.

Coalville Market Toilets

The toilets were now open on a Sunday and no vandalism had been reported. They were currently making around £5 income per week.

It was moved by Councillor J Geary, seconded by Councillor J Legrys and

RESOLVED THAT:

1. The progress update on 2016/17 Capital Projects be noted.

RECOMMENDED THAT:

1. Consideration is given to reallocating some of the Urban Forest Park Section 106 monies to progress a centre piece for the Memorial Trees.

14. 2016/17 EVENTS UPDATE

The Cultural Services Team Manager presented the report to Members and provided an update on each event.

December – Christmas Lights Switch On Event

The event 'Christmas in Coalville' will be held on Saturday, 3 December and will be a joint event with the Coalville Town Team. The food and drink event will take place in the shopping centre and entertainment would be held on the upper car park.

The Head of Community Services advised Members that the fireworks would start at 5pm and that officers would ensure that there would be as much publicity as possible to ensure that local residents were aware of the timing.

Coalville Christmas Decorations

The installation of the Christmas lights has started and the tree for Memorial Square had been ordered along with a more attractive fence that would then be stored away for use each year. Inspection and testing had started and to date the Council had been made aware that nine lamp column timers were faulty and therefore additional expenditure was anticipated.

Coalville Events

The flyer advertising events for the town was attached and December's was currently being worked on.

2017/18 Proposed Events Programme

It was proposed that the events sub group would meet in the New Year to consider the events, it was proposed to review 'Coalville by the Sea' to see if the Council was able to offer more for the budget and provide a greater impact.

The Cultural Services Team Manager stated that credit needed to be given to the team for delivering the event considering the weather and it had been well attended.

Councillor D Everitt stated that 'Coalville by the Sea' was a good day's entertainment and congratulated officers for delivering the event despite the poor weather conditions as that may have put many people off attending.

Councillor J Legrys stated that he had spent time at 'Coalville by the Sea' as a volunteer for Hermitage FM and felt that it was a good event but felt that for the next year consideration needed to be given to the location of the marquees as the event was too spread out.

The Head of Community Services advised Members that there was a £16k budget for the Christmas Lights and £15,000 of that was tied up in the contract with Field and Lawn and therefore there was £1,000 kept back for maintenance however this year had been an unusual year as the Council had not experienced such high levels of maintenance and replacements required and a further reserve was required. He also advised Members that as requested at the last meeting officers had looked at lighting on the Clock Tower but as Members were aware there was not the resource to move forward and it was therefore proposed to look at that in next year's budget.

Councillor J Geary expressed concerns over the cost of the timers and asked officers to ensure that the best quote was found.

In response to a question from Councillor P Purver in relation to the Christmas trees that were put up on shop fronts, the Head of Community Services advised Members that there was no budget allocation of funds from the Coalville Expenses budget and that a contractor contacts each business to see if they wish to participate. He informed Members that he was aware that not all business were contacted and therefore this year a letter will be sent to all business with the contact details on to see if they wish to have a tree. Members were advised that the letter was to be sent out the day after the meeting, a copy of the letter would be sent to all Members.

It was moved by Councillor M Specht, seconded by Councillor J Legrys and

RESOLVED THAT:

- 1. The progress update on 2016/17 events be noted
- **2.** The initial proposals for 2017/18 events be noted.

RECOMMENDED THAT:

- **1.** A sum of £3,000 be allocated from reserves to cover the replacement timers and maintenance of Christmas lights.
- 2. The event dates for Proms and Picnic in the Park 2017 be agreed as 24 and 25 June.

15. FINANCE UPDATE

The Head of Community Services presented the report to Members. He advised that it was a very early forecast to end of year but the position was currently showing an overspend and informed Members that this was due to the events expenditure showing an overspend and reduced burial income. He advised that officers were hoping to mitigate the variances. In terms of the balances the forecasted outturn was £56,000 however the Members had just recommended that an additional £3,000 be put towards the maintenance of the Christmas lights and an update would be brought to the December meeting.

Councillor P Purver thanked the Head of Community Services for arranging the additional grass cutting at the ends of Owen Street and Margaret Street.

It was moved by Councillor J Legrys, seconded by Councillor N Clarke and

RESOLVED THAT:

The 2016/17 period 5 position be noted.

16. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The Chairman reminded Members that the next meeting would take place on Thursday, 15 December 2016 at 6.30pm.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm

The Chairman closed the meeting at 7.07 pm